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NUVOX'S REPLY TO SBC MISSOURI'S RESPONSE

TO REQUEST FOR EXPEDITED ORDERS AND NOTICE REGARDING REQUEST FOR EXPEDITED ORDERS


Comes Now NuVox Communications of Missouri, Inc. ("NuVox") pursuant to 4 CSR 240-2.080(15) and, for its Reply to SBC Missouri's Response to Request for Expedited Orders and Notice Regarding Request for Expedited Orders, states to the Commission:

1. As described in its Second Amended Petition, NuVox seeks immediate relief from unlawful, abusive and anticompetitive practices by SBC regarding collocation services.  Despite a long and well established record of the proper method for charging for collocation power consumption and related HVAC, in invoices received beginning in December, 2002, without any advance notice or explanation, SBC unilaterally reinterpreted the physical collocation tariff, doubled its charges for collocation power consumption and related HVAC, and in January 2003 began attempts to retroactively impose such double charges for over a year of prior services for which invoices had already been issued and paid.  In dollar terms, SBC has sought to unilaterally increase charges for collocation power and HVAC to NuVox in Missouri from approximately $35,000 per month to over $70,000 per month, to impose more than $466,000 in retroactive charges, and to impose associated late payment charges.  SBC has also engaged in this unlawful conduct in other SWBT states at the same time, thereby multiplying the adverse impacts on NuVox such that SBC has already demanded more than $1.5 million and the total is rapidly approaching $2.0 million.  SBC has compounded its unlawful conduct by threatening to discontinue collocation services to NuVox (which in turn would result in total disruption of NuVox's services to its customers) absent payment into escrow of the illegal charges.  NuVox has attempted to resolve this matter by directly contacting SBC, without success. Accordingly, NuVox herein seeks Commission orders prohibiting SBC's illegal activities, including expedited orders precluding SBC from discontinuing collocation services to NuVox and precluding SBC from using its illegal and bad faith activity as an anticompetitive means of tying up NuVox's working capital in escrow pending resolution of this proceeding.


2.  As stated in the Second Amended Complaint, the Commission has general jurisdiction over both NuVox and SBC as telecommunications companies and their telecommunications facilities, including pursuant to Section 386.250 RSMo., including all powers necessary or proper to enable it to carry out fully and effectually all its regulatory purposes as provided in Section 386.040.  The Commission has jurisdiction to supervise SBC and its facilities pursuant to Section 386.320 RSMo.  The Commission has jurisdiction to pursue complaints regarding unlawful conduct by telecommunications companies, such as this one against SBC, pursuant to Sections 386.310, 386.330, 386.390, 386.400 and 392.400.6 RSMo.  As described in greater detail in the Second Amended Complaint: (i) SBC has violated Sections 392.200.1 and 392.240.2 RSMo. by attempting to impose charges greater than those allowed by a tariff and related interconnection agreements and the Commission's orders relating thereto; (ii) SBC has violated Section 392.480 RSMo. by attempting to impose charges outside the provisions of a tariff; (iii) SBC has violated the provisions of Section 392.230.3 RSMo. by attempting to change tariffed rates without submitting the proposed changes to the Commission for approval; (iv) SBC has violated Sections 392.200.6 and 392.240.3 RSMo. by threatening to break established connections between its facilities and those of NuVox; and (v) SBC has violated Sections 251(c)(6) and 252(d)(1) of the Telecommunications Act of 1996 and 47 CFR 51.501-09 by attempting to impose unapproved collocation prices that exceed TELRIC.


3.  In its Response, SBC does not accurately summarize NuVox's complaint.  While the Commission can and will of course review the Second Amended Complaint itself, for purposes of preventing any misunderstandings as a result of SBC's summary, it is important to note that the ultimate issue is that the maximum amount of DC power being provided by SBC to NuVox is defined by the capacity of the primary feed, which for all NuVox collocations in Missouri is 100 amps.  Hence, the "per amp" rate set forth in the tariff has, until SBC's recent attempts to unilaterally (and retroactively) reinterpret the tariff, been properly applied to a total of 100 amps.  There is no basis for SBC's effort to change these established practices by unilaterally doubling power charges based on the unfounded theory that there is somehow a capacity of 200 amps.  SBC has always provided two feeds for redundancy, but while electric current flows over both feeds for a balanced load, the actual amount never exceeds the 100-amp capacity of the primary feed (and is actually substantially less) so that there will not be a disruption of service in the event a lead fails.  This is the essence of the redundancy in the design.  NuVox ordered and has consistently obtained collocation power from SBC in this manner and has, until SBC's latest misconduct, been charged accordingly for 100 amps of capacity.


4.  Contrary to SBC's pleading, NuVox did not order 200 amps of power.  Rather, NuVox ordered and obtained 100 amps of power with a redundant design.  SBC has charged NuVox for 100 amps of service for over two years, before seeking to unilaterally change matters late last year.  The tariff did not change the manner in which SBC provides collocation power to NuVox.  Rather, the tariff clearly continues to expressly confirm the redundant arrangement.  Hence, there simply is no basis whatsoever for SBC's attempt to unilaterally double collocation power charges.


5.  SBC fails to acknowledge that this is not a dispute over bills issued in due course, but rather a dispute over SBC unilaterally adding retroactive and otherwise unauthorized charges to NuVox's bills.  Indeed, SBC makes no attempt to explain its change of practices in its pleading.  SBC also fails to acknowledge that NuVox has continued to pay all authorized charges for collocation, including 100 amps of collocation power, as it has always done since the commencement of its collocation arrangements.


6. NuVox appreciates SBC's statement in its pleading that it "is not planning to terminate or alter NuVox's current collocation arrangements".  However, that statement contradicts SBC's correspondence to NuVox.  Moreover, SBC is indeed seeking to alter NuVox's current collocation arrangements, by purporting to double the amount of power from the 100 amps ordered by NuVox to an unordered and unauthorized amount of 200 amps.


7. SBC likewise fails to address any of the points made in the Second Amended Complaint demonstrating that the escrow provisions of the collocation tariff do not and cannot lawfully apply to this dispute.  In contrast, NuVox was upfront with the Commission about the issues raised by SBC in its correspondence regarding these escrow provisions, seeking an immediate order regarding the inapplicability of the provisions.


8.  As made evident by SBC's Response, there is indeed a dispute between the parties concerning the escrow provisions of the tariff.  As indicated in NuVox's complaint and requests for expedited relief, the Commission needs to address this issue immediately. 

9. SBC has unlawfully demanded that NuVox pay the amount of the double and retroactive collocation power charges into escrow in order to pursue this dispute. The dispute resolution section of the tariff on which SBC relies was only meant to apply to disputes regarding bills issued on a timely basis in due course between the parties. These provisions do not apply to attempts by SBC to reach back into periods for which bills have already been issued and unilaterally add double charges based upon its unilateral and self-serving reinterpretation of the tariff.  SBC's attempts to retroactively impose additional charges taint all the invoices issued since November 2002 and exempt the dispute over those invoices from the escrow provisions as well.  This is a substantive dispute over the meaning of the language of the tariff that was commenced by SBC's attempt to retroactively impose a new interpretation and new charges.  This dispute is not subject to the billing dispute provisions of the Physical Collocation tariff.

10. Further, at least as applied to this specific dispute, the escrow provisions of the tariff are contrary to sound public policy and should not be enforced.  Allowing SBC to unilaterally compel NuVox to tie up millions of dollars of precious working capital based upon SBC's self-serving and unilateral retroactive reinterpretation of tariff provisions in a manner totally contrary to its own prior practices would be unjust and anticompetitive.  When imposed on a relatively new facility-based CLEC like NuVox that has not yet reached the point of being cash flow positive, the denial of working capital caused by unwarranted escrow demands can have significant detrimental consequences.  If such practices were permitted, there would be no limit to the amount of CLEC money that SBC could tie up simply by placing bogus charges on its invoices in bad faith.  

11. The dispute resolution provisions of the Physical Collocation tariff are limited to "bona fide" disputes (see Section 6.6.1).  SBC has not initiated a bona fide dispute by its bad faith effort to unilaterally reinterpret the tariff contrary to well established practices, without any advance notice and on a retroactive basis, and without any legitimate explanation for this fundamental change in its collocation billing practices. Accordingly, these dispute resolution provisions, including the escrow provisions, do not apply to this matter.

12. The escrow provisions of the tariff also do not apply because this is not a dispute over "anything ordered from [the Physical Collocation] tariff", as required by Section 6.6.1.  NuVox did not suddenly order twice the power that it had previously been obtaining, but rather continues to obtain power pursuant to its initial orders.  SBC has attempted to impose additional power charges upon NuVox, contrary to NuVox's orders, the provisions of the tariff, and the custom and practices of the parties.  Hence, the escrow provisions are inapplicable.

13. The escrow provisions of the tariff do not apply because the amounts at issue exceed one percent (1%) of the amounts charged to NuVox under the tariff in the preceding twelve months.  Because of the amount in dispute, mandatory arbitration does not apply.  (Tariff Section 6.6.6).  The escrow provisions only apply to arbitrated disputes, in that there is no provision for release of funds from escrow except in relation to an arbitration.  (Tariff Section 6.6.2.D(5)).

14. The escrow provisions of the tariff also do not apply because threats to terminate collocation service are subject to a different dispute resolution process under Section 11 of the Physical Collocation tariff.  Moreover, the audit provisions of the M2A (Section 32) allow NuVox to challenge the improper charges without escrow.

15.  Accordingly, contrary to SBC's assertions, the escrow provisions are not mandatory or otherwise applicable to this dispute.  NuVox has not waived its rights to bring this dispute before the Commission for resolution. 

16.  The Commission should eliminate these issues by confirming that the escrow provisions of the tariff do not apply to this dispute.

WHEREFORE, premises considered, NuVox prays the Commission to:

 (1) immediately issue an expedited order ruling that NuVox does not have to comply with SBC demands for payment into escrow of the amounts imposed by SBC pursuant to its unilateral reinterpretation of the power consumption and HVAC elements and charges set forth in the Physical Collocation tariff, without prejudice to its rights to prosecute its Complaint, until further order of the Commission;


 (2) promptly set a prehearing conference and a deadline to file a procedural schedule, so that this case may proceed to hearing;

(3) after further proceedings herein, determine that NuVox does not owe any of the amounts imposed by SBC pursuant to its unilateral reinterpretation of the power consumption and HVAC elements and charges set forth in the Physical Collocation tariff, or any late charges related thereto, and accordingly direct SBC to revise its invoices and otherwise return to its prior practice of basing collocation power consumption and HVAC charges upon the amperage of the primary feed; and

(4) grant such other and further relief to NuVox as the Commission deems just and proper in the premises.
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